
 

Ordinance Revision Committee 11-10-09  Page 1 of 4  

  TOWN OF OLD ORCHARD BEACH 

     ORDINANCE REVISION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES January 13, 2010 
Call to Order at 7:05 pm Call to Order 

Roll Call: Present: Chair George Kerr, Vice Chair Linda Mailhot, Robert 
Scoville, William Daley, and Steve Bryant. Chief John Glass arrived in the 
middle of the meeting.  
Staff: Mike Nugent, Code Enforcement Officer. Gary Lamb, Town Planner.  

ROLL 

CALL 

Review of Chapters 18 and Chapter 2, Article III 

 
Chairman Kerr briefly explained his visit to the Chamber of Commerce and 
how the businesses represented there felt about proposed changes. He stated 
there was concern about the campground ordinance and if this is the same as 
the states. If so, they wanted to just reference the state.  
Mr. Nugent explained that it is the same, but it is spelled out in the ordinance 
for the staff’s benefit and ease of relevant information that is often needed. It 
is a better reference for staff, as staff is the ones who inspect the 
campgrounds, but do not inspect tattoo parlors, etc.  
Chairman Kerr mentioned that the business people were very interested in 
signage and felt that the ordinances are too restrictive concerning signage. He 
understood we would be getting to that in chapter 78. 
Vice Chair Mailhot asked concerning 18-389; the chamber wondered why 
ice cream trucks were restricted in certain areas  
Chairman Kerr felt this was to protect the vendors in that area.  
Vice Chair Mailhot suggested adding the word “permanent” to the tattoo 
definition. She went on to 18-35. There was discussion about having 
“relevant” in each section. She also questioned the number of complaints and 
if the committee wanted to keep that.  
Mr. Nugent stated that yes the number should stay, and staff will make sure 
that the “relevant” wording is in each section as needed.  
Vice Chair Mailhot asked about procedure regarding someone buying a 
property, asking staff if there are code violations and when there is none on 
record, finding out afterwards during a licensing inspection that there are 
deficiencies. She inquired as to how this could be changed.  
Mr. Nugent answered that this is now done. When a business owner comes 
in to apply for a license and has a purchase and sales agreement, we do an 
inspection and all updates can then be contingent upon the sale.  
Chair Kerr asked for clarification about the relevant wording.  
Mr. Nugent stated will be changed and updated, as will the tattoo wording to 
reflect permanent tattoos tomorrow morning, as this will be going to council 
at the next meeting. Essentially, Chapter 18 is done.  
Mr. Bryant found in 18-31, section (a) there are two “grants.” 
Mr. Nugent clarified the wording was correct.  
Mr. Scoville inquired about dog licensing as opposed to cat licensing and 
why the state does not license cats.  
Mr. Nugent stated he does not know why; maybe because it is very difficult.  
Vice Chair Mailhot stated that as many committee members as possible will 
be attending the council meeting to explain and back-up the committees 
desires.  
Mr. Nugent stated that given all neighboring towns do licensing by staff it 
should be the same here. He stated he will create a memo outlining the 
changes for the committee members and the council.  
Mr. Lamb reminded the committee to make sure they emphasize this is only 

Review of 

Chapters 18 

and Chapter 2, 

Article III 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
TOWN OF OLD ORCHARD BEACH 

ORDINANCE REVISION COMMITTEE  MINUTES January 13, 2009 

Ordinance Revision Committee Minutes 01-13-10  Page 2 of 4 

to be done by staff when alcohol is not involved. All liquor licenses and 
special amusements will go to council.  
Chairman Kerr stated that the people he spoke with felt they wanted to take 
the politics out of it and that some members of the council are in agreement. 
Mr. Lamb questioned if he was getting positive feedback from one or more 
of the councilors. 
Chairman Kerr stated yes. He asked if the committee was comfortable with 
making a motion to go forward with this as amended; the issues with the 
tattoos, addition of term relevant, etc. 
Mr. Lamb stated the term relevant is in there, but not in all the sections 
necessary. 
Mr. Nugent stated this will be inserted.  
Chairman Kerr asked if there are any other changes.  
Mr. Nugent stated he needs to find out the halfway point in Map, Block, Lots 
for licensing by noontime tomorrow. Our IT guy, Bill Botting will get that to 
me, or we will hand-search ourselves tomorrow to get the wording correct.  
Chairman Kerr asked if we can put the language in. 
Mr. Nugent stated that there is language in there with blank numbers, and we 
will take care of the numbers then. We will insert the numbers tomorrow. 
Chairman Kerr stated that was fine. He asked if everything else is complete. 
He then stated that at this time he will entertain a motion.  
Mr. Scoville moved to adopt, as amended Chapter 18 with the changes to 
make sure the word relevant is added, to add the language in to delineate 
between permanent tattoos, as well as to add correct numbering to the 
licensing division. 
Mr. Bryant seconded.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Mr. Nugent moved to Chapter 2. He pointed out that this is only Article III. 
There were some questions concerning minutes at the Public Hearing, and we 
addressed that. He also addressed that if we get rid of Sec. 2-126, we would 
be getting rid of the position entirely.  
Vice Chairman Mailhot felt that not all positions are spelled out so why is 
this?  
Mr. Nugent stated the town attorney advised them to keep this because it has 
implications regarding the Town Manager. It is absolutely different because 
the Town Manager’s position is a charter position, and this person steps in 
when needed. If we take this out, we will need to change the position to 
secretary, assistant to the Town Manager, etc., but I did not feel it was the 
desire of the committee to do that. We just got rid of the job description, but 
the position itself was kept. The only other thing was the adjustment with 
regards to the Section 2-444, section (b) to change the requirements for at 
least three quotations regarding items of more than $1000 to $2000. 
Therefore, the need for three quotations will be after the $2000 mark, not 
$1000. Also, all the school board references are gone, clarification on the 
finance committee being advisory,  
Chairman Kerr stated he felt the easiest way to make this motion is to 
accept Article III as presented. That would include the change of the amount 
money, change in position description, etc.  
Vice Chair Mailhot motioned to accept Article III as presented.  
Mr. Daley seconded.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion 

 

 

Vote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion 

 



 
TOWN OF OLD ORCHARD BEACH 

ORDINANCE REVISION COMMITTEE  MINUTES January 13, 2009 

Ordinance Revision Committee Minutes 01-13-10  Page 3 of 4 

Motion passes unanimously. 

 

Mr. Nugent stated that the Police Chief agreed that the littering ordinance 
can go away. We talked at the last meeting about this, and he agreed. The 
draft shows that stricken.  
Chairman Kerr asked about the Fire Chief. 
Mr. Nugent stated that he had a memo from Chief Glass indicating he did not 
have any changes. Under 30-76, we talked about having automatic updates 
from the state, and he supports that. With regards to residential sprinklers, he 
has a good point that the state is working toward that. We can not require 
them for one and two family homes.  
Chairman Kerr asked if the chief had a problem with that.  
Chief Glass said no, he did not.  
Mr. Nugent felt this was a stay execution, as eventually this will be state 
mandated. When the time comes we will adopt what the state is requiring.  
Chairman Kerr asked what happens when a home is sold and it does not 
meet the code; either single family or two family. 
Mr. Nugent posed the question of a three-story, single family home being 
built with no intent to rent that would not need to be sprinkled. If the home 
was sold and then the owner wishes to rent it, today it would be a problem 
because of the third floor. It would need to be retro-fitted with sprinklers. If 
have an old existing, single-family home, and you sell it we are not going to 
have them do that.  
Chairman Kerr stated it should be consistent. 
Mr. Nugent stated that today it states on the certificate of occupancy, built by 
today’s standards. 
Mr. Daley thought that could potentially limit new home construction. 
Mr. Nugent stated it normally does not because it is usually higher end 
properties, and the builders/owners do not care about the cost.  
Chief Glass stated it was not really that much more expansive. For example, 
if you build a house for $300,000.00, it is really not that much of expenditure 
to spend another $5,000.00, especially to safeguard your home and get better 
insurance rates.  
Mr. Daley felt that was incorrect, and he did not have the perspective of a 
builder.  
Mr. Nugent explained that the town ordinances require doing some stupid 
stuff to keep the code, such as sealing off the third floor, etc. to meet the 
rental code. Where the rest of the world exempts them we should too. When 
the rest of the world requires it his opinion was the town should. 
Chairman Kerr wanted to make sure the chief was comfortable with this.  
Chief Glass stated yes.  
Mr. Nugent stated there may be certain exemptions regarding different 
circumstances which could be addressed by such bodies as Planning Board.  
We will bring those ordinances back to the next meeting with the edits. The 
last thing is to preliminary talk about noise.  
Mr. Lamb explained the noise committee had done a lot of work 2+ years 
ago, but the levels they came up with were really way too low to work. It was 
put to the council, and they wanted an ambient noise study which takes over a 
year. We need to get the consultants here for a workshop.  
Chairman Kerr suggested we delete the noise ordinance all together, and if 
the council decides they need one then to adopt one at that time. It makes no 

Vote 

 

 

 

 

Review of 

Chapter 22, 26, 

and 30.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
TOWN OF OLD ORCHARD BEACH 

ORDINANCE REVISION COMMITTEE  MINUTES January 13, 2009 

Ordinance Revision Committee Minutes 01-13-10  Page 4 of 4 

sense to have an ordinance that is not enforceable.  
Mr. Lamb stated he felt that if the Police Chief was here that he would say 
the current ordinance is pretty unenforceable. He did not wish to speak for 
him, but that was what he believed the Police Chief felt.  
Chairman Kerr suggested talking with the Police Chief before the next 
meeting to see if he wished to keep this or take it out.  
Mr. Lamb felt it was not being enforced, even if it was enforceable. He felt 
Chief Kelley should be here at the next meeting.  
Chairman Kerr reiterated that he did not think it should be in the ordinance 
if it is not enforceable.  
Mr. Nugent suggested that the committee not try to quiet the town down, but 
to just make an ordinance that makes sense. He suggested taking an ambient 
noise level at any given time, and you have a complaint. Then you have the 
ambient noise number, and if the alleged violator’s noise level is a given 
number, 10, 15, whatever, is above the ambient noise level, then that person is 
in violation of the ordinance. If you can’t get them down, they will be in 
violation. I spent very formal language like that to Chief Kelley and I believe 
he liked it.  
Chairman Kerr stated he felt that the loudest area is in the square. Will those 
activities be exempt?  
Mr. Lamb exempting a special amusement or something like that could be 
done. There are things we can clean up to make them enforced.  
Chairman Kerr felt that there were some complaints regarding Salvation 
Army activities in the square and offensive activities to some. 
Mr. Nugent stated it should be noted to the council when the special 
amusement permit comes up to the council. We possibly could exempt certain 
things, such as the amusement rides in the square. He then inquired about the 
next meeting and whether it should be next Wednesday, January 21, 2010.  
Mr. Lamb stated the room would be occupied, and we would need to find 
another room. 
Mr. Nugent stated we would find a room.  
Chairman Kerr stated if we do need to have the meeting at the substation 
everyone can park at Surf Six.  
 
Vice Chair Mailhot moved to adjourn at 6:45 p.m.  
Mr. Daley seconded.  
 
Motion passes unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion 

 

 

Vote 

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:45 P.M.  

I, Tori Geaumont, Secretary to the Ordinance Revision Committee of the Town of Old Orchard 

Beach, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of four (4) pages is a true copy of 

the original minutes of the Ordinance Revision Committee Meeting on January 13, 2010. 

 


